PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

Survey #: P.G. #70-11 Building Date: 1880's

Building Name: Seabrook-Beseke house

Location: 9409 Dubarry Avenue

Descrigtion:

The Seabrook-Beseke house is a3 two-and-one-half-story frame gable-raofed
cottage which rests on a high brick basement. The principal facade is the north
gable end: its first bay is a three-window semi-octagonal bay, and its second
is the entrance door with five-1ight transon and three-light sidelights. The
windows and door have plain board surrounds with shallow pediments. The entry
porch is being replaced by a porch with brick steps and aluminum columns. On
the three-bay west side of the house, there is narrow central peaked gable
lighted by a five-pane pointed-arch window. There is one-story addition which
runs the length of this west side. The north and south gable ends, as well as
the central peaked gable on the west, are ornamented with elaborate bargeboards;
the raised S-shaped ornaments on the bargeboards are missing. The original
German siding is covered with ashestos shingle. There is a large central brick
chimney. Interior alterations include removal of mantels and some of the molded
surrounds of the doors.

Significance:

The Seabrook-Beseke house is one of three Victorian cottages constructed in
the planned rural retreat of Seabrook; it has been significantly altered. The
retreat community was developed by Thomas Seahbrook, a Philadelphia engineer for
the Pennsylvania Railroad. Three Victorian cottages were constructed before
1288 and used as vacation residences by Thomas Seabrook and his colleagues, the
subject house being used by Seabrook himself., After standing vacant for some
years, this house was repaired in the 1930's, hut major alterations were not
undertaken until recent years. Some of the original features have been removed
from the interior, and a one-story addition has been constructed along the west
side of the house. The resulting house is recognizable as one of the three
Seabrook cottages, but most of its original character has been lost.

Acreage: ca. 1 acre
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State Historic Sites Inventory Form
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Survey No.
Magi No, 1700975604

DOE yes no

1. Name

(indicate preferred name)

historic Seabrook House

and/or common  Seabrook House #1 (Beseke House)

2. Location

9409 Dubarry Avenue

street & number

___ not for publication

city, town  Seabrook ___ vicinity of congressional district 5

state Md. county P.G.

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

____district —___ public _X_occupied ____agriculture ____ museum

__X building(s) _x__ private ____ unoccupied ____ commercial _ park

— structure _— both ____ work in progress ___ educational _x__ private residence

___ site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment — religious

___ object ____in process __.. yes: restricted —__ government ____ scientific

~— being considered ——_ yes: unrestricted ___industrial transportation
_" not applicable _X_no ____ military ____ other:

4- Ownel‘ Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Rngnr‘ Beseke

street & number 9409 Dubarry Avenue

telephone no.:

city, town Seabrook state and zip code Md. 20706

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. P.G. County Courthouse liber 4792
street & number  Main Street folio 572

city, town Upper Marlboro, state Md.

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title P.G. Co. Inventory of Historic Sites

date 1974 — federal ___ state _xcounty — local

_pository for survey records History Division, MNCPPC

city, town Riverdale,

state Md.




7. Description survey No. P.G. #70-11

Condition Check one Check one

_X_ excellent ____deteriorated ____ unaltered _X_ original site

—__good ____ruins __X aitered —_ moved date of move
— fair —___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Seabrook-Beseke house is a two-and-one-half story (ca. 23' x 30')
frame gable-roofed cottage which rests on a high brick basement. The prin-
cipal facade is the north gable end. In its first bay is a three-window
semi-octagonal bay; its windows are 4/6. In the second bay is the principal
entrance; the door has five-light transom and three-light side-lights. The
original entry porch is presently being replaced by a porch with brick steps
and baked aluminum columns. The windows and door have plain board surrounds
with shallow pediments. At loft level in the north gable end is a small
triangular window.

On the three-bay west side of the house, there is a narrow central
peaked gable lighted by a five-pane pointed-arch window. There is a
one-story addition which runs the length of the west side of the house. A
raised deck has been constructed west of this addition.

The north and south gable ends, as well as the central peaked gable on
the west facade, are ornamented with elaborate bargeboards; the raised
S-shaped ornaments on the bargeboards are missing.

The original German siding is presently covered with asbestos shingle.
There is a large central brick chimney. At ground level at the rear (south)
of the house is an enclosed one-story porch/sunroom.

The interior of this house has been significantly altered, but its plan
is known from the Kelly-Howerton house (cf. #70-14): front and back parlors
on the east, stairhall on the west. The mantels have been removed and
replaced in the connecting wall, and the architraves of some doors have been
removed and modernized. In places where the architraves remain, they are the
same heavy muliple-course ovolo moldings found in the Kelly house.



8. Significance Survey No. P.G.#70-11

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___ prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric X community planning ___ landscape architecture ____religion
__1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —_science
_1500-1599 ___ agriculture —__economics — literature —_sculpture
___1600-1699 _X _ architecture ___ education ___ military ___ social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art —_engineering —_ music humanitarian
X 1800-1899 ___ commerce —_ exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
—— 1900- —__ communications ___ industry —_ politics/government ____ transportation
____invention X__ other (specity)
local history
Specific dates 1880's Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A _ B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state __ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Seabrook-Beseke House is one of three Victorian cottages construc-

ted in the planned rural retreast of Seabrook; it has, however, been signifi-
cantly altered, unlike the easternmost cottage (P.G. #70-14).

The retreat community of Seabrook was developed by Thomas Seabrook, a
Philadelphia engineer for the Pennsylvania Railroad who had been instrumental
in designing the railroad tunnels through Baltimore, and laying out the
lateral branch (now the main line) from Bowie Junction into Washington.!

In 1871, Seabrook purchased 223 1/4 acres of a tract called "Webb" and 275
adjoining acres, and a decade or so later began to lay out a resort commu-
nity, easily accessible from the city of Washington by rail.2

Three Victorian cottages were constructed before 1888; the easternmost
was sold, but the other two were retained by Seabrook, with the westernmost
(the subject property) being used by Seabrook himself as a vacation resi-
dence. After Seabrook's death in 1897, this cottage was sold by his heirs to
a real estate agency and rented out for many years; it had, however, stood
vacant and unrepaired for a considerable period of time before the first
private owners moved in in the mid-1930's. At that time the floor boards in
the basement had rotted away, and the roof also had to be replaced. A1l the
glass panes in the windows had been broken_and were replaced. The interior
woodwork and the mantels were left intact.3

Major alterations were made by later owners: the interior spaces were
opened up, and some of the architrave molding was removed. The mantels were
replaced. A one-story addition was built onto the west side of the house.
The resulting house is recognizable as one of the three Seabrook cottages,
but most of its original character has been lost.

Notes:

1 The History of the Pennsylvania Railroad, 1949.

2 HB#4:626, Eq. #432/#434.

3 . .
Interview with 1930-1940's owner-resident, September 1984,



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.p ¢ 470 11

History of the Pennsylvania Railroad, 1949. P.G. Co. Plat JWB#5:701.
P.G. Co. Deeds: #4794:572; #3156:89; #2678:38; #1959:469: 775:374;

#631:196; #83:262; HB #4:626; Equity #432/#434. P.G. Co. Tax Assessments.
Interview with present and former owners, September 1984,

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property __Ca. 1 acre
Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UTM References (o NOT complete UTM references

Lol Lol los] TN

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Sysan G. Pearl, Research Historian

organization Historic Preservation Commission date September 1984
street & number c/0 County Planning, MNCPPC telephone  952-352]
city ortown Upper Marlboro, state Md.

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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rentals,

The houses are 1--1/2 story, frame structures, sitting on
high brick foundations. The entrance (north) facades are two
bavs, the westerly being a doorwav with tall transom light and
low~pedimented architrave, the easterly being a bav window. In

the forward facing gable 1is a triangular window, the sides
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which are segmental arches.

Only 9513 retains the original west facade treatment. A
ona story porch runs across the tw bay facade. The north bay
is a doorway with a tell transcom light and the south bay is a
west-facing gable is extremely narrow, giving it a vertical
appearance; it has a narrow, tall, triangular-arched window.

Features which distinguish these houses are central

chimneys larger than those usally found on mid-nineteenth cen-

tury houses, elaborate bargebosrds consisting of a series of

interconnected S curves, and tall finials in the gables.
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P.G.#70-11
Seabrook House #1 (Beseke house)
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
September 1984
West elevation
Neg: Md.Hist.Trust, Annapolis,MD







P.G.#70-11
Seabrook House 41 (Beseke house)
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. pearl
September 1984
southwest 3/4 elevation
Neg: Md.Hist.Trust, Annapolis MD







p.G.#70-11

House #1 (Beseke house)

Seabrook
MD

Prince George's Countys
susan G. pearl
September 1984
Northwest 3/4 e
Neg: Md.Hist.Trust,

levation
Annapolis,MD




